Zeitschrift: Helvetia: magazine of the Swiss Society of New Zealand

Herausgeber: Swiss Society of New Zealand

Band: 13 (1948)

Heft: 6

Artikel: Fortifications in Swiss Alps Guard Mountain Republic

Autor: [s.n.]

DOI: https://doi.org/10.5169/seals-942541

Nutzungsbedingungen

Die ETH-Bibliothek ist die Anbieterin der digitalisierten Zeitschriften auf E-Periodica. Sie besitzt keine Urheberrechte an den Zeitschriften und ist nicht verantwortlich für deren Inhalte. Die Rechte liegen in der Regel bei den Herausgebern beziehungsweise den externen Rechteinhabern. Das Veröffentlichen von Bildern in Print- und Online-Publikationen sowie auf Social Media-Kanälen oder Webseiten ist nur mit vorheriger Genehmigung der Rechteinhaber erlaubt. Mehr erfahren

Conditions d'utilisation

L'ETH Library est le fournisseur des revues numérisées. Elle ne détient aucun droit d'auteur sur les revues et n'est pas responsable de leur contenu. En règle générale, les droits sont détenus par les éditeurs ou les détenteurs de droits externes. La reproduction d'images dans des publications imprimées ou en ligne ainsi que sur des canaux de médias sociaux ou des sites web n'est autorisée qu'avec l'accord préalable des détenteurs des droits. En savoir plus

Terms of use

The ETH Library is the provider of the digitised journals. It does not own any copyrights to the journals and is not responsible for their content. The rights usually lie with the publishers or the external rights holders. Publishing images in print and online publications, as well as on social media channels or websites, is only permitted with the prior consent of the rights holders. Find out more

Download PDF: 02.08.2025

ETH-Bibliothek Zürich, E-Periodica, https://www.e-periodica.ch

2152

HELVETIA

MONTHLY
PUBLICATION
OF THE



SWISS BENEVOLENT SOCIETY IN NEW ZEALAND (INC.)

GROUP NEW ZEALAND OF THE NEW HELVETIC SOCIETY.

WELLINGTON N.Z.

JUNE 1948.

Volume 6. 13th year

FORTIFICATIONS IN SWISS ALPS
GUARD MOUNTAIN REPUBLIC.

The amazing network of fortifications which helped, Switzerland escape invasion by Hitler are discussed by Dean Jennings in the April 24th issue of The Saturday Evening Post. He emphasized that these secret forts are being strengthened constantly, and that Switzerland today is as determined and ready to fight aggression as she was during World War 11.

Jennings writes - "Switzerland in 1948 is a giant anthill to an extent that would surprise any tourist who came here before the war. There are miles and miles of corridors, tunnels, caverns and whole towns under the earth and inside the rocks - a total of 3,000 separate installations squeezed into the little country's 15,944 square miles. The smallest can generally be found along the western border, one line of which, for example, might run through Geneva, Le Locle, Delemont and Basel. These positions consist of concrete dragon's teeth, dozens of squat blockhouses disguised as private homes, and miles of barbed wire, and each single unit is usually occupied by ten men. This network of minor defenses, located on rolling land in the long open valley, was never intended to do more than slow down an enemy advance for a day, perhaps, or a week.

But the pride of the army lies in the elliptical area known as Le Réduit, or Redoubt, and it was here, in the white heart of Switzerland, that a seemingly hopeless dream was hammered and drilled into reality. The chain of great forts begins at St. Maurice, an ancient town first fortified by the Romans, at the mouth of the deep Rhone gorge, and extends northeastward across the frosty heights through Brig, Gletsch, Andermatt and Chur to Sargans, on the Liechtenstein border. Along this route, as the map shows, there are pockets reaching toward Italy, and these, too, are studded with forts. One of the army's main supply depots and arsenals is located at Thun, long a popular tourist town, and during the war, the gateway to the Redoubt was at nearby Interlaken, the picturesque city at the foot of the scaring Jungfrau. Interlaken is also a repository for fortress ammunition and millions of gallons of high-octane gasoline and oil. Share eyed travellers coming from Berne can spot the arsenals just to the right of the railroad tracks by their telltale splotched doors flush with the mountainside. Gasoline is stored in Gargantuan underground tanks on the edge of the old town where many an American tourist has idled away a Summer's day under the shade of the nut trees.

Each fort is a completely independent unit and will hold from 500 to 1,500 men. Diesel engines furnish electric current, subterranean streams are tapped for water, and all rooms are air-conditioned and gasproof. Like any other city, each fort has its own doctors, hospital, sleeping quarters, recreation room, showers, radio station, news room and storage chambers. Many can be reached by camouflaged, narrow-gauge rail tracks; others are entered through hidden doors and mole-like tunnels which are frequently changed, and most are equipped with electric elevators which spear through rock for hundreds of feet.